1991

Louis L. Timm, John Neiuwland, and Floyd M.  
Childs, Precision Machine and Engineering  
Company Profit Sharing Trust, et al v. T. Lamar  
Dewsnap and Aletha Dewsnap : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

### JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Supreme Court has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Article VIII, Section 3, Constitution of Utah, Section 78-2-2(3)(j), Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended and Rules 3(a) and 4(a), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

### ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The following issues are presented for reviews:

1. Did the district court error in holding that T. Lamar and Aletha Dewsnums' (the "Dewsnums") counterclaim was "implicitly" disposed of by the summary judgment on the plaintiffs' claim.

2. Did the district court error in denying the Dewsnums' motion to either reconsider and set aside the summary judgment or to certify the summary judgment as final?

3. Did the district court error in denying the Dewsnums' motion to amend their counterclaim?

### STANDARD OF APPELLATE REVIEW

1. Issue 1 - Correctness Standard. The first issue appeals the district court's interpretation of the summary judgment. Although such an interpretation can be a "finding of fact" where extrinsic evidence is considered in interpreting the judgment, in this case, where the court's interpretation was based solely on the pleadings, it is a "conclusion of law." Kimball v. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, 716 (Utah 1985); c.f. Williams v. Miller, 794 P.2d 23 (Utah App. 1990). Therefore, the appellate court will give no

deference to the trial court's interpretation of the summary judgment, but will review it for correctness. Ron Case Roofing & Asphalt v. Blomquist, 773 P.2d 1382 (Utah 1989).

2. Issue 2 - Correctness Standard. The second issue appeals the district court's denial of the Dewsnums' motion to either reconsider and set aside the summary judgment or to certify it as final. The court based this denial on the conclusion of law that the Dewsnums' counterclaim had been "implicitly" disposed of by the summary judgment. (See the Memorandum Decision, attached hereto as Exhibit G).

Ordinarily, where a matter is in the discretion of the district court, the district court's decision will not be overturned on appeal unless there is an abuse of discretion. Chadwick v. Nielsen, 763 P.2d 817 (Utah App. 1988). This is not true, however, where the court's decision is based on an erroneous legal conclusion. In such a case, the court will not give deference to the district court's decision but will use the correctness standard. Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway Company v. Marzuola, 418 P.2d 625, 627 (Okla. 1966); Hornback v. Missouri-Kansas-Texas Railroad Co., 395 P.2d 379, 380 (Kan. 1964). In this case, because the district court's denial of the Dewsnums' motion was based on a legal conclusion, the correctness standard should be used.

3. Issue 3 - Correctness Standard. The third issue appeals the district court's denial of the Dewsnums' motion to amend their counterclaim. Again, this decision was based on

the legal conclusion that the Dewsnums' counterclaim had been disposed of. (See Memorandum Decision, attached hereto as Exhibit G). Consequently, as discussed above, the appellate court will not give deference to the district court's ruling, but will use the correctness standard.

#### STATEMENT OF CASE

The Dewsnums have suffered for 10 years for a debt which they did not owe. This is the first time that the Dewsnums will have their story heard. In 1978, the Dewsnums' attorney loaned the Dewsnums money secured by a trust deed on their farm. After they had paid the debt in full in 1980, their attorney refused to release the trust deed and sued them on the trust deed for a debt which they did not owe and which was not secured by the trust deed. Their attorney then recommended another attorney to represent them in the litigation, who did not make any appearance (written or otherwise) on plaintiffs' motion for summary judgment and summary judgment was granted against the Dewsnums.

In order to try to save their farm the Dewsnums' filed bankruptcy. However, the bankruptcy court sought only to eventually enforce a summary judgment that it presumed was correct. Since a state court decision is res judicate in bankruptcy court, the bankruptcy court could not reconsider the facts underlying the summary judgment. Sustained by the knowledge that they had paid off the mortgage, the Dewsnums persevered through 10 years of bankruptcy litigation,

believing that if they persevered long enough, somehow justice would prevail and they would get their farm back.

Unfortunately, in the bankruptcy court litigation, all of the issues were mere "technicalities" toward the eventual enforcement of the summary judgment. Even if the Dewsnums' win their current appeal before the United States Supreme Court in their bankruptcy case, they will lose their farm.

During the last 10 years the Dewsnums have not been able to farm their farm (on the advice of their bankruptcy counsel), have been reduced to poverty and have suffered enormously emotionally and physically. It is difficult to describe the emotional toll 10 years of bankruptcy litigation has had on this family, as they have tried to save the family farm. Many attribute LeMar Dewsnum's premature death in 1986 to the ongoing stress of this litigation. As a result of borrowing money to pay the ever mounting legal fees, two of the Dewsnum children were eventually unable to repay the money they had borrowed and were also forced into bankruptcy. Alone and penniless in 1988, and having lost below in the bankruptcy and district courts, Aletha Dewsnum went through the town of Delta, Utah with a tin cup raising the \$10,000 bond she needed to appeal to the Tenth Circuit. Sustained by the belief that if she tried hard enough, someday justice would prevail, Aletha Dewsnum never gave up hope. Aletha Dewsnum has tried hard enough, the Dewsnums never owed the debt for which they have been persecuted for 10 years,

and now is the time for justice to prevail.

After the plaintiffs had filed their complaint against the Dewsnums, the Dewsnums filed a counterclaim against the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs moved for summary judgment on their claim and summary judgment was granted, but the Dewsnums' counterclaim was never decided.

When the Dewsnums filed bankruptcy, their counterclaim became an asset of the bankruptcy trustee and the Dewsnums were not able to pursue it. On January 6, 1991, the bankruptcy trustee finally abandoned the counterclaim back to the Dewsnums.

Having regained control of their counterclaim, on January 22, 1991 the Dewsnums filed a motion to amend their counterclaim and a motion to either reconsider and set aside the summary judgment or to certify it as final, so that it could be appealed. Because the summary judgment had not disposed of all the claims in the case and had not been certified as final, under Rule 54(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure the summary judgment was still subject to revision. The court denied both motions, holding that the Dewsnums counterclaim had been "implicitly" disposed of by the summary judgment. From that holding the Dewsnums brought this appeal.

### FACTS

1. In the spring of 1980, the Dewsnums were farmers who owned a farm near Delta, Utah. LaMar Dewsnum's health was not good and the Dewsnums decided to purchase a motel as a way of eventually getting out of farming. (R. 90).

2. The Dewsnums approached their attorney, Joseph Henroid, and asked him if he knew anyone that would lend them \$119,000 as a down payment on a motel they were looking at. Joseph Henroid said that he would lend them part of the money from the Annette Jacob trust fund that he was trustee for and that he knew some other people that would lend them the rest. (R. 90-91).

3. The Dewsnums and Joseph Henroid had agreed that the loan would be secured by 160 acres of farm land and certain water rights that the Dewsnums owned outright. (R. 62, 91, 197).

4. In June 1980, the Dewsnums borrowed \$119,000 from Joseph Henroid, as trustee of the Annette Jacob Trust, and from the rest of the plaintiffs in this case (who were people that Joseph Henroid had contacted). (R. 91, 124, 199-200).

5. Joseph Henroid and Earl Peck, one of the attorneys at Joseph Henroid's law firm, drafted all of the loan documents. (R. 91, 125, 197).

6. On or about June 1, 1978, the Dewsnums executed three promissory notes (the "Promissory Notes") in favor of the plaintiffs totaling \$119,000. (R. 91, 124, 199-200).

7. At the same time, the Dewsnums executed a Trust Deed and an Amended Trust Deed (collectively, the "Trust Deed") to secure the Promissory Notes. (R. 91, 124, 199-200).

8. Although the Dewsnums signed the Trust Deed assuming that it reflected their agreement with Joseph Henroid, it did not. Unbeknowst to the Dewsnums, the Trust Deed also included 56.71 acres of land in Oak City, Utah that Aletha Dewsnum had been given as an inheritance. (R. 62, 91, 198).

9. Also unbeknowst to the Dewsnums, as additional security for the Promissory Notes the Dewsnums executed an Assignment of Contract (the "Assignment of Contract"), assigning to the plaintiffs a security interest in a purchase contract (the "Purchase Contract") by which the Dewsnums were purchasing additional farm land. (R. 62, 91, 198).

10. In 1976, the Dewsnums had entered into the Purchase Contract to purchase some additional farm land (sometimes referred to herein as the "Arrow Land") adjacent to the 160 acres the Dewsnums owned from LaMar Dewsnum's cousin, Richard Dewsnum (through his company--Arrow Investment Company), for \$400,000 with annual installments for twenty years due on January 2 of each year. (R. 91-92, 125, 198-99).

11. Title to the land being purchased under the Purchase Contract was held by an escrow agent under escrow instructions. (R. 183-84).

12. The Purchase Contract gave the Dewsnums the right to terminate the Purchase Contract by failing to make any of the

annual installments due under the Purchase Contract on January 2, by the following June 2 of that year:

If Buyers default on the payment falling due on January 2, 1977, or any payment thereafter falling due, and if such sum or any part thereof remains in default for a period of five months, then Buyers shall forfeit any and all right, title and interest that they otherwise would have in and to the property covered by this agreement, title to which has not passed to Buyers at that time, and this agreement shall terminate.

(Purchase Contract, pp. 5-6). (R. 153-54).

13. If a January 2 payment due under the Purchase Contract was not paid by the next succeeding June 2, the escrow agent was instructed to return title to the land to the seller:

Your instructions are to...release to the seller the warranty deed...if...the Buyers shall default in the payment of any sum falling due under the agreement and said sum or any part thereof remains in default for a period of five months.

(Escrow Instructions, Paragraph 4). (R. 184).

14. At the time the Dewsnums entered into the Purchase Contract the Intermountain Power Project ("IPP") was coming into the area and had driven up land prices and the \$400,000 purchase price reflected the inflated real estate market at the time, which proved to be too high. (R. 92).

15. In 1980, two years after the \$119,000 loan had been made, LaMar Dewsnum's health was getting worse, and property values were declining. The Dewsnums decided to let the land they were purchasing under the Purchase Contract go back so LaMar would have less land to farm. (R. 92, 125, 200).

16. On June 2, 1980, the Dewsnums exercised their contractual right under the Purchase Contract and terminated the Purchase Contract by failing to make the January 2, 1980 payment by June 2, 1980. Therefore, the Purchase Contract terminated according to its terms, the escrow agent delivered title to the land back to LaMar Dewsnum's cousin as provided in the escrow instructions, and the Dewsnums voluntarily forfeited all of their right, title and interest in the Arrow Land. (R. 92, 125, 200-01).

17. Five days later, on June 7, 1980 and over the Dewsnums' objections, Joseph Henroid made the January 2, 1980 payment of \$49,966.21 on the Purchase Contract, even though it was too late. (R. 92, 125-26, 201). (See the Demand for Reimbursement attached hereto as Exhibit A).

18. The plaintiffs demanded that the Dewsnums reimburse them the \$49,966.21 that Joseph Henroid had paid on the Purchase Contract. (R. 92, 126, 201). (See Exhibit A).

19. The Assignment of Contract required the Dewsnums to reimburse the plaintiffs for payments made by the plaintiffs "under and pursuant to the Purchase Contract":

[The Dewsnums] agree that in the event they are in default that [plaintiffs] may make the payments due under and pursuant to [the Purchase Contract] and will be reimbursed for the same by [the Dewsnums].

(Assignment of Contract, Paragraph 4). (R. 145).

20. The Dewsnums refused to do so, believing that they were not legally required to do so since the Purchase Contract

had terminated before Joseph Henroid had made the payments and therefore Joseph Henroid's payments could not have been made "under and pursuant to" the Purchase Contract. (R. 92, 126).

21. On June 1, 1980, the \$119,000 loan came due. (R. 8-10).

22. On September 16, 1980, the plaintiffs filed a complaint against the Dewsnums to foreclose on the Trust Deed for the non-payment of the \$119,000 loan. (R. 1-7). (A copy of the complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit B).

23. About this time, Joseph Henroid told the Dewsnums that he could no longer be their lawyer and recommended a lawyer in Provo. The Dewsnums hired the lawyer he suggested, who filed an answer and counterclaim on November 21, 1980. (R. 59-63, 93). (A copy of the answer and counterclaim is attached hereto as Exhibit B).

24. The counterclaim alleged that Joseph Henroid and Earl J. Peck had breached their fiduciary duty to the Dewsnums by failing to disclose that the Trust Deed included more than the 160 acres agreed upon and that the Assignment of Contract assigned the plaintiffs a security interest in the Purchase Contract. The counterclaim requested a reformation of the Trust Deed and the Assignment of Contract to conform with the representations Joseph Henroid made to the Dewsnums as to the legal effect of those documents at the time the \$119,000 loan was made. (R. 61-63).

25. In December, 1980, the Dewsnums sold the motel and

paid in full all principal and interest due and owing on the \$119,000 loan (\$151,013.89) and asked that the Trust Deed be reconveyed. (R. 93, 126, 202).

26. The plaintiffs refused to release the Trust Deed unless they were reimbursed for the \$49,966.21 payment Joseph Henroid had made. (R. 93, 126-27, 202).

27. The Trust Deed only secured the Promissory Notes, and did not secure payments made under the Assignment of Contract:

[The] trustor conveys and warrants to trustee in trust with power of sale, following described property...for the purpose of securing payment of the indebtedness evidence by a promissory note of even date herewith, in the principal sums of \$33,000; 56,000 and 30,000, made by Trustor, payable to the order of Beneficiary at the times, in the manner and with interest as thereon set forth, and any extensions and/or renewals or modifications thereof.

(Trust Deed, p. 1). (R. 133, 138).

28. Notwithstanding the fact that the \$49,966.21 debt, even if valid, was not secured by the Trust Deed, on March 3, 1981 the plaintiffs filed a motion to foreclose on the Trust Deed, for the \$49,966.21 payment and filed an affidavit in support thereof. (R. 66-70). (Copies of the Motion for Summary Judgment and the Affidavit of Louis L. Timm are attached hereto as Exhibits D and E, respectively).

29. Neither plaintiffs' motion for summary judgment nor the affidavit filed in support thereof either mentioned the counterclaim or any of the issues raised in the counterclaim.

(R. 66-70). (See Exhibits C and D).

30. When the plaintiffs' motion for summary judgment was scheduled to be heard, the Dewsnums' new attorney failed to appear at the hearing and summary judgment was granted against the Dewsnums. (R. 73-74).

31. On April 22, 1981, Judge Harlan Burns signed the Summary Judgment and Decree of Foreclosure (sometimes referred to herein as the "summary judgment"). (R. 75-79) (A copy of the Summary Judgment and Decree of Foreclosure is attached hereto as Exhibit F).

32. The Summary Judgment and Decree of Foreclosure did not mention the counterclaim or any of the issues raised in the counterclaim. (R. 75-79) (See Exhibit F).

33. The Summary Judgment and Decree of Foreclosure also did not specify that it was a final judgment for purposes of Rule 54(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. (R. 75-79). (See Exhibit F).

34. With the summary judgment in hand, the plaintiffs began proceedings to foreclose on the Dewsnums' farm to recover the \$49,966.21 payment. Because the plaintiffs refused to release the Trust Deed, the Dewsnums were unable to finance the farm debts which were coming due. The Dewsnums' new lawyer advised them that their only hope to save the family farm was to file for bankruptcy, which they did. It was not until many years later that the Dewsnums reviewed the court records and learned that their new lawyer had never

appeared at the hearing on plaintiffs' motion for summary judgment. (R. 93-94).

35. Although the bankruptcy allowed the Dewsnums to forestall foreclosure on their farm, upon filing bankruptcy, their counterclaim became the property of the bankruptcy trustee and the Dewsnums were barred from pursuing it. (R. 95-97).

36. As a result of summary judgment being erroneously granted 10 years ago and plaintiffs' refusal to reconvey the Trust Deed, the Dewsnums have suffered enormous financial, emotional and physical losses through 10 years of bankruptcy litigation. Many attribute LaMar Dewsnum's premature death in 1986 to the ongoing stress of this litigation. Aletha Dewsnum has been reduced to a virtual pauper. She now works odd jobs to try to pay the enormous legal bills that have accumulated. For nearly 10 years now, the farm has lain dormant. The Dewsnums have not farmed the land on the advice of their bankruptcy counsel. (R. 94, 203).

37. The Dewsnums' bankruptcy case is finally nearing an end. Their case is currently before the United States Supreme Court on a bankruptcy issue and will be heard during October term. Even if the Dewsnums win their appeal before the United States Supreme Court they will probably still lose their farm, since they will have to redeem the farm for \$39,000 which they currently do not have. (R. 262-282).

38. On December 14, 1990, the bankruptcy trustee published a notice of intention to abandon the Dewsnums' counterclaim and on January 6, 1991, the bankruptcy trustee abandoned the Dewsnums' counterclaim. (R. 103-105).

39. With the counterclaim abandoned, on January 22, 1991, the Dewsnums filed a motion to amend the counterclaim, in order to proceed forward to a final adjudication of the counterclaim. (R. 194-207).

40. On January 22, 1991, the Dewsnums also filed a motion to either reconsider and set aside the Summary Judgment and Foreclosure Decree, or to certify it as final pursuant to Rule 54(b) so that the Dewsnums could appeal it. (R. 107-109).

41. On February 21, 1991, Judge Ray M. Harding denied both motions, holding that the Summary Judgment and Foreclosure Decree had "implicitly" disposed of the Dewsnums' counterclaim. (R. 348-349). (A copy of the Memorandum Decision is attached hereto as Exhibit G).

42. On March 11, 1991, Judge Ray M. Harding entered a Order Denying Defendant Dewsnums Motion to Amend Counterclaim, Reconsider or Certify as Final. (R. 350-51). (A copy thereof is attached hereto as Exhibit H).

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Dewsnums counterclaim was not disposed of by the summary judgment because it was not mentioned in the motion for summary judgment, in the affidavit in support of the

motion for summary judgment or in the summary judgment itself. Furthermore, any disposition of the Dewsnums' counterclaim would have been without notice to the Dewsnums and therefore would have been in violation of due process and in violation of Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

Because the Dewsnums' counterclaim was not disposed of, and because the summary judgment was not certified as final at the time it was entered, under Rule 54(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure the summary judgment was not a "final judgment" and is subject to revision. Because the summary judgment was erroneously granted, it should be set aside. If not set aside, it should be certified as final pursuant to Rule 54(b) so that it can be appealed.

Finally, under Rule 15 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure the Dewsnums' should have been allowed to amend their counterclaim toward a final adjudication thereof.

#### ARGUMENT

##### I

THE DEWSNUMS' COUNTERCLAIM HAS NOT BEEN ADJUDICATED.

A. UNDER RULE 54(b) OF THE UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, THE DEWSNUMS' COUNTERCLAIM WAS NOT DISPOSED OF BY THE SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

The summary judgment only granted judgment on the plaintiffs' complaint and never mentioned the counterclaim or any of the issues raised in the counterclaim. Nevertheless, Judge Harding held that the counterclaim was "implicitly" disposed of by the summary judgment.

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