1991

Louis L. Timm, John Neiuwland, Floyd M. Childs,  
ABCO Insurance Agency, Inc., Joseph L. Henriod,  
Annette Jacob Trust v. T. Lamar Dewsnap, Aletha  
Dewsnap : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

Third, the issues presented by the Dewsnums in their proposed Counterclaim were tried and dismissed with prejudice by Judge Glen E. Clark of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Utah. The Dismissal by Judge Clark of the Dewsnum's claims is res judicata and bars the Dewsnums from now bringing the same claims in the Utah District Court as well as claims that should have been, but were not, brought before Judge Clark.

The Dewsnums' Motion to Reconsider and Set Aside or Certify as Final the Summary Judgment was properly denied by Judge Harding. Judge Harding correctly ruled that the Dewsnum's Motion to Reconsider and Set Aside or Certify as Final does not exist under the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

## ARGUMENT

### I.

THE DEWSNUPS' COUNTERCLAIM WAS ADJUDICATED WHEN JUDGE BURNS ENTERED SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS

A. Rule 54(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure does not apply to the facts present in this case.

Plaintiff's Complaint requested a determination by the trial Court of amounts owed on the notes executed by the Dewsnums' and for an Order of the Court foreclosing Plaintiff's security interest pursuant to the assignment of the Purchase Contract.

The Dewsnums' Answer and Counterclaim alleged that the Assignment of the Purchase Contract was unknowingly and unwittingly signed by the Dewsnums and further, that part of the property covered by the Trust Deed was improperly included in the Trust Deed. As a result of the foregoing, the Dewsnums asked that the Assignment of the Purchase Contract be vacated and the Trust Deed reformed.

Judge Burns' Summary Judgment established the amount owed on the notes, and found that the Trust Deed and Assignment of the Purchase Contract secured the Notes and ordered the Dewsnums interest in the Purchase Contract foreclosed. The relief granted by Judge Burns was so completely incompatible with the relief requested by the Dewsnums in their Counterclaim as to render their claim that

the Counterclaim is still viable, meaningless. This is so because it would have been impossible for Judge Burns to order the foreclosure of the Dewsnums interest in the Purchase Contract and acknowledge the Trust Deed as additional security for the notes if there remained a question of fact concerning the validity of the same security interests that he was ordering foreclosed.

The Dewsnums reliance on Lamp v. Andrus, 657 F2d 1167 (10th Cir. 1981) is misplaced. The Lamp decision did not involve a Counterclaim where the relief sought was reformation of the instruments that the Plaintiffs were seeking to foreclose. The Lamp Counterclaim was truly a separate cause of action that required a ruling independent of the Plaintiff's Claims. The Dewsnum Counterclaim was comprised of several affirmative defenses to the Plaintiffs action that were characterized by the Dewsnums' attorney as a Counterclaim. A counterclaim must be a proper counterclaim and not merely a defense "mistakenly designated" as a counterclaim in order to fall under the provisions of Rule 54(b). 6 Moore Federal Practice 2d, Section 54.35.

A fact situation much closer to the present case is found in Joseph E. Bennett Co. v. Trio Industries, Inc. 306 F2d 546 (1962). After quoting Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in its entirety the Court concludes that Rule 54(b) is not applicable.

There has been no formal adjudication of the Defendant's Counterclaim and there has been no expressed determination and direction under the above rule. Therefore, strictly speaking, the Judgment entered for the Plaintiff in this case does not dispose of all claims for relief and so is not a "Final Decision" within the meaning of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1291. But the Judgment for the Plaintiff rests upon the finding that it had not broken its Contract with the Defendant which is the issue tendered by the Defendant's Counterclaim. Thus all claims presented have actually been decided. All that is lacking is a formal "Final Decision", i.e. the entry of a ministerial act of a formal Judgment of Dismissing the Defendant's Counterclaim. Under these circumstances, following the reasoning of Judge Clark in General Time Corp v. Padua Alarm Systems, Inc., 199 F2d 351, 358 (C.A. 2 1952), Cert. Denied, 345 U.S. 1917, 73 S. Ct. 728, 97L.ed. 1351, (1953), we hold that the Judgment entered for the Plaintiff is a "Final Decision" appealable under Section 1291. Id. at Page 548.

The Bennett Decision was followed in 1986 by the 6th Circuit Court of Appeals in the case of Ford Motor Co. v. Transport Indemnity Co. 795 F2d 538 (6th Cir. 1986). The Ford case, supra, involved a District Courts granting of a Summary Judgment where the Defendant's Counterclaim was not dismissed. In holding that the Summary Judgment was a final decision the 6th Circuit held as follows:

If the District Court's ruling on one claim necessarily precludes an alternative or mutually exclusive claim, a final order will arise despite the lack of an explicit declaration by the District Court. Joseph E. Bennett Co. v.

Trio Industries, Inc. 306 F2d. 546, 548 (1st Cir. 1962); General Time, 199 F2d. 358. Although the District Court never explicitly ruled on TICO's Counterclaims, we are persuaded that the District Court rulings rejected these Counterclaims. Id at 543.

The Sixth Circuit goes on to base its decision that the Counterclaims were rejected on two separate and distinct grounds. First, that Ford in its Motion for Summary Judgment argued that the Counterclaims were meritless both as a matter of fact and law and second, that the District Court's finding of liability upon an endorsement executed by TICO necessarily and implicitly rejected TICO's exoneration and rescission claims.

Judge Burns' granting of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment establishing the amount owed on the Notes and ordering the foreclosure of the security interest is mutually exclusive of the Dewsnuys' claims that the security should not be foreclosed because of a mistake by the Dewsnuys in executing the instruments creating the security.

As in the Bennett and Ford cases, supra, Judge Burns' Judgment constituted a final appealable order.

B. The Dewsnuys had notice of the disposition of their claims and were not denied due process.

Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment requested a money Judgment against the Defendant's and that the security for the notes be foreclosed. In this regard, the Summary

Judgment Motion specifically states that there are not material issues of fact remaining in the case. The Dewsnums have never denied that they received a copy of the Motion for Summary Judgment, the Affidavit of Louis Timm, nor have they denied receiving notice of the hearing before Judge Burns. It was the Dewsnums and their attorney who chose to not respond to the Motion for Summary Judgment, to not file any opposing Affidavits and to not appear at the hearing on the Motion.

The notice requirements of Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure were complied with by the Plaintiffs to the letter. Dewsnums knew well in advance of the hearing that the Plaintiffs were claiming there were no material facts at issue that would preclude a money Judgment being entered against the Dewsnums as well as a foreclosure of the security on the Notes. It was the Dewsnums and their attorney's decision to not appear at the hearing on Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment and argue that their Counterclaims created issues of fact that would preclude the entry of Summary Judgment against them. The Dewsnums' claim that they did not receive Notice of the proceedings in this matter is simply not supported by the record. Their attorney did receive notice of the hearing. Whether his failure to appear at the hearing or otherwise respond to Plaintiffs Motion was by strategy, agreement with the Dewsnums or possible neglect is a matter between the Dewsnums and their attorney. The

Dewsnups cannot lay at Plaintiffs feet the Dewsnups failure to defend against Plaintiffs Summary Judgment Motion.

II.

JUDGE HARDING PROPERLY REFUSED TO ALLOW THE DEWSNUPS TO FILE AN AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM.

A. It was within Judge Harding's discretion to allow or not allow the Amended Counterclaim.

As previously discussed in this Brief Judge Harding correctly ruled that the Summary Judgment disposed of Defendant's Counterclaim. Assuming, however, arguendo that the Dewsnups' Counterclaim remained after the entry of the Summary Judgment, Judge Harding was still justified, eleven years later, in refusing to allow the Dewsnups to amend it.

In Utah the decision of a Trial Court to allow or not allow an amended pleading has always rested within the Judge's sound discretion. Absent a clear abuse of discretion the Appellate Court will not disturb a Trial Court's ruling on a Motion to Amend. Girard v. Appleby, 660 P2d. 245 (Utah 1983). See also Westley v. Farmers Insurance Exch., 663 P2d 93 (Utah 1983) and Kelly v. Babcock & Wilcox 746 P.2d 1189 (Utah Ct. App. 1987).

B. The Dewsnups proposed Amended Counterclaim is barred by the doctrine of res judicata.

Res Judicata reflects the refusal of the Courts to tolerate pointless litigation and is based on the premise that

the proper administration of justice is best served by limiting parties to one fair trial on an issue or cause 46 Am. Jur. 2d. Judgment, Section 395 (1969).

"Res Judicata and collateral estoppel relieve parties of the cost and vexation of multiple lawsuits, conserve judicial resources, and by preventing inconsistent decisions encourage reliance on adjudication." Alan v. McCurry 449 U.S. 90, 94 (1980).

The Utah Court of Appeals in the case of Copper State Thrift and Loan v. Bruno 735 P2d. 387, 389 (Utah Ct. App. 1987) discusses the Doctrine of res judicata and its related branch of collateral estoppel. Copper State Supra. The Court of Appeals refers to this Court's decision in Penrod v. Nu Creation Creme, Inc., 669 P2d. 873, 874-75 (Utah 1983) at page 1189:

The Doctrine of res judicata has two related, but distinct branches. Both branches, however, have the dual purpose of protecting litigants from the burden of re-litigating an identical issue with the same party or his privy and of promoting judicial economy by preventing needless litigation...One branch, claim preclusion, bars the re-litigation of a claim that previously has been fully litigated between the same parties. To invoke this branch of res judicata, both suits must involve the same parties or their privies and the same claim or cause of action. Furthermore, the first claim must have been litigated on the merits and must have resulted in a final judgement. Penrod 669 P2d. at 875. In such a case, claim preclusion prevents



re-litigation not only of claims actually litigated in the first proceeding, but also claims which could and should have been litigated in the prior action, but were not raised. Id.

On March 3, 1987, the Dewsnums filed an Adversary Proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court, a copy of which Complaint is attached as Exhibit "B" to this Brief. The Dewsnums' First Cause of Action alleges that the Notes secured by the Plaintiff's Trust Deed had been paid in full and that the Trust Deed should therefore be removed from the record on the property of the Plaintiffs. After a two-day trial Judge Glen E. Clark dismissed the Dewsnums' claims with the exception of an issue concerning the ability of the Dewsnums to pay the fair market value of the secured property to the Plaintiffs and thereby redeem the property. Judge Clark later issued a Memorandum Decision holding that the Dewsnums could not redeem the property and a Judgment of Dismissal as to all of the Dewsnums' claims was signed by Judge Clark on August 15, 1988. The Dewsnums later appealed Judge Clark's ruling but only the part of the decision disallowing their claimed right to redeem the property by paying the fair market value to the Plaintiffs. Judge Clark's ruling has been upheld by both the District Court and the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals and the matter has now been briefed and is set to be heard on oral argument before the United States Supreme Court on October 15 of this year.

Claim two of the Dewsnums proposed Amended Counterclaim is virtually identical to claim one of their Adversary Proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court. Based upon the foregoing the Dewsnums proposed Amended Counterclaim falls squarely within the Doctrine of res judicata or claims preclusion. The parties in the Dewsnums bankruptcy proceeding and the proposed Amended Counterclaim are identical. The Dewsnums Bankruptcy Court action was fully litigated and resulted in a Final Judgment of Dismissal. The Dewsnums did not appeal the Dismissal of their First Cause of Action in the Bankruptcy proceeding and the time for appeal has long since run. The other claims presented in the Dewsnums proposed Amended Counterclaim could and should have been litigated in the Bankruptcy Court action but were not raised by the Dewsnums. It is difficult to conceive of a fact situation falling more squarely within the claims preclusion branch of res judicata than the one presently before this Court.

C. The filing of the Amended Counterclaim would have been prejudicial to Plaintiffs.

If the filing of an amended pleading would result in prejudice to the adverse party it is within the discretion of the Trial Court to refuse to allow the amendment. The facts in this case make it clear that the filing by the Dewsnums of an Amended Counterclaim would be prejudicial to the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs Judgment was entered in 1980, some

eleven (11) years prior to the Dewsnums' Motion to Amend their Counterclaim. If the Dewsnums' Counterclaim still exists, they have allowed it to sit for such an extended period of time that, not only has the Trial Judge who originally heard the case retired, one of the Counterclaimants, namely Lamar Dewsnum, is deceased. The Dewsnums eleven (11) year delay in bringing their Motion to Amend has virtually made it impossible for the Plaintiffs to now conduct discovery into the allegations made in their proposed Amended Counterclaim.

D. The Dewsnum's Bankruptcies did not preclude them from a timely Motion to amend their Counterclaim.

In their Brief the Dewsnums state that the filing of their bankruptcies precluded them from a Motion to Amend their Counterclaim. This claim is simply not accurate. The Dewsnums correctly state that Section 323(a) of the Bankruptcy Act names the Bankruptcy Trustee as the "representative of the estate" and authorizes the Trustee to act on behalf of the bankruptcy estate. Further, the Dewsnums point out that Bankruptcy Rule 6009 provides that "(W)ith or without Court approval the Trustee...may prosecute...any pending action or proceeding by...the Debtor." What the Dewsnums fail to point out is that the Bankruptcy filed by the Dewsnums on April 23, 1981, the day after Judge Burns signed the Summary Judgment and Decree of Foreclosure, was a Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. The significance of this omitted fact is that under a Chapter 11

Bankruptcy the Dewsnums were acting as Trustees of the Estate and were empowered with the right to prosecute any pending actions on behalf of themselves. The truth is that from April 23, 1981, until June 27, 1984, the date the Dewsnums filed their Chapter 7 Bankruptcy, the Dewsnums had the right to prosecute their Counterclaim if they believed that one still existed.

In addition, the Dewsnums later filed an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court setting out several of the claims outlined in their proposed Amended Counterclaim. (The Bankruptcy Adversary proceeding is discussed at subpoint D of this argument.)

Finally, while it is technically true that the Dewsnums were precluded after the date of filing their Chapter 7 Bankruptcy from bringing their Motion in the District Court until the Trustee abandoned the claim, they fail to give the reasons why the claim was not abandoned until 1991. First, it is doubtful that the Trustee even knew about the claim since it was not listed by the Dewsnums in their bankruptcy schedules as an asset of the estate. Second, the Dewsnums were treating Judge Burns' Judgment as being final and were involved in an adversary proceeding to void the same Judgment that they now claim is not final. It was not until the

Dewsnups lost their bankruptcy case, that they decided to pursue the argument that the Judgment was not a final order.

III.

JUDGE HARDING WAS CORRECT IN REFUSING TO RECONSIDER AND SET ASIDE OR CERTIFY AS FINAL THE SUMMARY Judgment.

The Summary Judgment was not properly before the Court for reconsideration. Utah Courts have never recognized a Motion to Reconsider and Set Aside a Summary Judgment unless said Motion is brought pursuant to Rule 60 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. In the case of Peay v. Peay, 607 P2d 841 (Utah 1980), the Utah Supreme Court in rejecting a Motion for Reconsideration of a Court Order and Motion for Relief from Final Judgment quoted with approval the decision of the Supreme Court in Utah State Employees Credit Union v. Riding 24 Utah 2d 211, 469 P2d 1 (Utah 1970):

Under the record here, we are unaware of any such Motion under our rules...

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